




Bryn Tegid estate extended to some 200 acres including 2 farms. 
It included the lake foreshore where he built a stone landing stage 
and was the fi rst person to own a yacht on the lake.

F  If you continue on the A494 for 1 km from the fi nish, you would 
come to the Glanllyn Outdoor Activity Centre. The centre 
organises educational courses for schools and colleges as well 
as summer camps for children and young people and specialises 
in the medium of Welsh. The centre is also the home of Urdd 
Gobaith Cymru (the Welsh Youth Organisation). The centre off ers 
Ten Pin Bowling and High Ropes to the public, but you must book 
in advance (Tel: 01678 541000). Previously Glanllyn was a 19th-
century mansion at the heart of the 30,000 acres estate, it was 
largely used by Sir Watkin W Wynn during the shooting season.
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Continue for another kilometre and you will come to the Roman 

Fort of Caergai (The Fort of Cai). The A494 is along the route of 
a Roman road. The south-eastern wall of the old fort is still visible 
and the existing farmhouse was built in the north corner. Caergai 
has been a mansion for local gentry for centuries including 
Rowland Vaughan, an ardent Royalist during the Civil War. His 
house was burnt to the ground by Cromwell’s Army and his lands 
temporarily confi scated (see D above). To the east of Caergai is 
the hamlet known as Y Lôn (The Street). It lies on the path of the 
old Roman Road from Chester. When the row of houses was built 
as part of a 1951 Festival of Britain Project, Roman graves were 
discovered.
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Llyn Tegid (Bala Lake), the largest natural lake in Wales, approx. 
3½ miles long and 150ft deep, lies on the Bala – Talyllyn geological 
fault-line. The basin was probably created by glacial erosion 
during the Ice Age. The Gwyniad, a survivor of the Ice-Age, is a 
species of fi sh, similar in features to a herring, is unique to the lake. 

 Local legend relates that the lake was formed as punishment for 
the misdemeanours of Tegid Foel (Tegid the Bald) - a local prince. 
His mansion, with all its occupants, were reputedly drowned one 
night during a drunken orgy, after guards neglected replacing the 
cover on a magic well which would otherwise overfl ow at night. 
Only one survived – an itinerant harpist who was led out of danger 
by a small bird calling repeatedly, “Vengeance has come…”. When 
he awoke on the hillside in the morning he saw a huge lake fi lling 
the valley with his harp fl oating on its surface!  More recent tales 
exist about a monster lurking in the dark depths of the lake. In 
1995 a Japanese mini submarine conducted a survey beneath the 
waters but did not fi nd a monster!

B
 
Loch Café. The small wooden cafe was erected by William 
Meredith one of the fi rst and best known local photographers.
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Llanycil Church (St. Beuno) dates back to the 8th C. but was 
extensively rebuilt in 1881. The Church was closed in 2003. In 2007 
it was purchased by the Bible Society who intends to turn it into 
the Llanycil Faith Heritage Centre. Many renowned men are buried 
in the church cemetery – the most notable being the Rev. Thomas 
Charles, a prominent leader in the Methodist revival. Here also lies 
Dafydd Cadwaladr, father of Betsi Cadwaladr a well-known nurse 

who worked in a hospital in Balaclava during the Crimean war (see 
Betsi Cadwaladr Trail), and not forgetting Bob Tai’r Felin – who was 
well-known for his ballads and folk singing.

 Mary Jones walked bare-foot from Llanfi hangel-y-Pennant to 
Bala, in 1800, to buy a bible – a return journey of over 52 miles (see 
Mary Jones Trail). Thomas Charles had none left but gave her his 
own bible. This led to the formation of the Bible Society.

 Previously there was a tavern the “Cross-Keys” on the side of the 
road now part of the churchyard. Opposite the church is the 
former rectory “Abercelyn” built in 1729. It is now a B&B and the 
outbuildings, the former Tithe Barn and Poor House, are used as 
self-catering cottages.
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Immediately after Llanycil church is the mountain stream, Nant 
Gwenwyn-feirch, which is known locally as the “Poisoned 

Stream”. Apparently after the battle of Naseby (1645), Oliver 
Cromwell instigated a hunt for Royalists - Rowland Vaughan, an 
ardent royalist, lived at Caer Gai, (see below). Cromwell’s men 
came camped by the stream near Llanycil Church on their way 
to Caer Gai. Local women threw Yew Tree leaves into the water 
upstream and the soldiers’ horses were poisoned the delay giving 
Rowland Vaughan time to escape.
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A large country house Bryn Tegid is now a B&B. Bryn Tegid was 
built in 1849 for Major General Robert Owen Jones. Amongst 
other things, he organised the Ordnance Survey of Wales and was 
managing director of the “Army & Navy Stores” in London. The 
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